
People & Places Board
Agenda

www.local.gov.uk

 

 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Thursday, 21 September 2017 
1.00 pm 
 
 
 
 
 

Rooms A&B, Ground Floor, Layden House, 
76-86 Turnmill Street, London, EC1M 5LG 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 



 

 

 

Guidance notes for members and visitors 
Layden House, 76-86 Turnmill Street, London, EC1M 5LG 

 

Please read these notes for your own safety and that of all visitors, staff and tenants. 
 
Welcome! 
Layden House is located directly opposite the Turnmill Street entrance to Farringdon station, which is 
served by the Circle, Hammersmith & City, and Metropolitan lines as well as the Thameslink national 
rail route.  
 
Security 
Layden House has a swipe card access system meaning that a swipe enabled security passes will 
be required to access the lifts and floors 1-5.   
 
Most LGA governance structure meetings will take place on the ground floor of Layden House 
which is open access and therefore does not require a swipe enabled security pass.  Access to the 
rest of the building (floors 1-5) is via swipe enabled security passes. 
 
When you visit Layden House, please report to reception and they will provide you with a temporary 
pass which will allow you access to  floors 1  5 if required.  Please don’t forget to sign out at 
reception and return your security pass when you depart. 
 
If you do not have a LGH Security Pass, please email member services with your name and a recent 
photo and a pass will be made for you. You can pick this up from the Layden House reception desk 
on your next visit. 
 
Fire instructions 
In the event of the fire alarm sounding, vacate the building immediately via the nearest fire exit onto 
Turnmill Street and take the next turning on your left – Benjamin Street to St John’s Gardens. 
DO NOT USE THE LIFTS. 
DO NOT STOP TO COLLECT PERSONAL BELONGINGS. 
DO NOT RE-ENTER BUILDING UNTIL AUTHORISED TO DO SO. 
 
Soft Seating Area  
There is a small soft seating area on Floor 2 which will also operate as an ‘Open Council’ area for 
visiting members and officers from member councils.  Please note however that unlike Open Council, 
this area does not have tea and coffee facilities, nor access to computers.     
 
Toilets 
There are accessible toilets on the Ground Floor, 2nd and 4th floors.   
 
Accessibility 
If you have special access needs, please let the meeting contact know in advance and we will do our 
best to make suitable arrangements to meet your requirements. 
 
Parking is available at the rear of the building for Blue Badge holders, accessed via the Turks Head 
Yard, North underpass.  Disabled WCs are situated on the ground and 4th floors. An induction loop 
system is available in the 5th floor conference venue.  For further information please contact the 
Facilities Management Helpdesk on 020 7664 3015. 
 
 
 
 

mailto:memberservices@local.gov.uk


 

 

Guest WiFi in Layden House  
WiFi is available in Layden House for visitors. It can be accessed by enabling “Wireless Network 
Connection” on your computer and connecting to LGA-Free-WiFi. You will then need to register,  
either by completing a form or through your Facebook or Twitter account (if you have one). You only 
need to register the first time you log on.  
 
Further help 
Please speak either to staff at the main reception on the ground floor, if you require any further help 
or information. You can find the LGA website at www.local.gov.uk  
 
Why have the LGA’s Headquarters moved?  
The LGA has temporarily relocated from Local Government House (LGH) in Smith Square to Layden 
House in Farringdon, effective from Monday 31 October 2016.  This is to allow extensive 
refurbishment work to be carried out to LGH.  
 
The refurbishment works will see the ground floor conference centre and all meeting rooms fully 
refurbished. Floors 1, 2 and 3 will be upgraded and released for commercial letting to enable the 
LGA to maximise the income from this building as part of its drive for financial sustainability. A new 
and larger Open Council will be located on the seventh floor. The refurbishment is expected to last 
for twelve months and we expect to be back in LGH by October 2017. 
 

We appreciate your understanding and flexibility during this time. 

 

http://www.local.gov.uk/


 

 

 
People & Places Board 
21 September 2017 

 

There will be a meeting of the People & Places Board at 1.00 pm on Thursday, 21 September 2017 
Rooms A&B, Ground Floor, Layden House, 76-86 Turnmill Street, London, EC1M 5LG. 
 

A sandwich lunch will be available at 12.45pm 
 

Attendance Sheet: 
Please ensure that you sign the attendance register, which will be available in the meeting room.  It 
is the only record of your presence at the meeting. 
 

Political Group meetings: 
The group meetings will take place in advance of the meeting. Please contact your political group as 
outlined below for further details. 
 

Apologies: 
Please notify your political group office (see contact telephone numbers below) if you are unable to 
attend this meeting. 
 
Conservative: Group Office: 020 7664 3223     email:     lgaconservatives@local.gov.uk   
Labour:  Group Office: 020 7664 3334     email:     Labour.GroupLGA@local.gov.uk  
Independent:  Group Office: 020 7664 3224     email:     independent.grouplga@local.gov.uk   
Liberal Democrat: Group Office: 020 7664 3235     email:     libdem@local.gov.uk 
 

Location:  
A map showing the location of Layden House is printed on the back cover.   
 

LGA Contact:  
Eleanor Reader-Moore 
0207 664 3383/ eleanor.reader-moore@local.gov.uk  
 
Carers’ Allowance  
As part of the LGA Members’ Allowances Scheme a Carer’s Allowance of up to £7.50 per hour is 
available to cover the cost of dependants (i.e. children, elderly people or people with disabilities) 
incurred as a result of attending this meeting. 
 

Social Media 
The LGA is committed to using social media in a co-ordinated and sensible way, as part of a 
strategic approach to communications, to help enhance the reputation of local government, 
improvement engagement with different elements of the community and drive efficiency. Please feel 
free to use social media during this meeting. However, you are requested not to use social media 
during any confidential items. 
 

The twitter hashtag for this meeting is #lgapp 
 

mailto:lgaconservatives@local.gov.uk
mailto:Labour.GroupLGA@local.gov.uk
mailto:independent.grouplga@local.gov.uk
mailto:libdem@local.gov.uk
mailto:eleanor.reader-moore@local.gov.uk


 

 

 

 
 

People & Places Board – Membership 2017/2018 
 
Councillor Authority 

  
Conservative ( 14)  

Cllr Mark Hawthorne MBE 
(Chairman) 

Gloucestershire County Council 

Cllr Gillian Brown (Vice 
Chairman) 

Arun District Council 

Cllr Ralph Bagge South Bucks District Council 

Cllr Derek Bastiman Scarborough Borough Council 
Cllr Deborah Croney North Dorset District Council 

Cllr Tom Fitzpatrick North Norfolk District Council 
Cllr Keith Glazier East Sussex County Council 

Cllr Charlotte Haitham Taylor Wokingham Borough Council 
Cllr Ian Hudspeth Oxfordshire County Council 

Cllr Daniel Humphreys Worthing Borough Council 
Cllr Peter Jackson Northumberland Council 

Cllr Harvey Siggs Mendip District Council 
Cllr Rob Waltham MBE North Lincolnshire Council 

Cllr Steve Count Cambridgeshire County Council 
  

Substitutes  
Cllr Adrian Hardman Worcestershire County Council 

Cllr Kenneth Meeson Solihull Metropolitan Borough Council 
  
Labour ( 4)  
Cllr Anne Western CBE (Deputy 
Chair) 

Derbyshire County Council 

Cllr Vince Maple Medway Council 

Cllr Leigh Redman Somerset County Council 
Cllr Azhar Ali Lancashire County Council 

  
Substitutes  

Cllr Lesley Williams MBE Gloucestershire County Council 
Cllr Alan Waters Norwich City Council 
  
Liberal Democrat ( 2)  
Cllr Heather Kidd (Deputy Chair) Shropshire Council 

Cllr Sarah Osborne Lewes District Council 

  

Substitutes  
Cllr Stan Collins South Lakeland District Council 

  
Independent ( 2)  

Cllr Bob Jennings (Deputy Chair) Epping Forest District Council 
Cllr Helen Grant North Yorkshire County Council 

  
Substitutes  

Cllr Robin Julian Devon County Council 



 

 

 
 
 
 

Agenda 
 

People & Places Board 
 
Thursday 21 September 2017 
 
1.00 pm 
 
Rooms A&B, Ground Floor, Layden House, 76-86 Turnmill Street, London, EC1M 5LG 
 

 
 

 Item Page 
 

1.   Welcome, Introductions and Declarations of Interest 
 

N/A  

2.   Minutes of the Last Meeting 
 

1 - 6  

3.   Membership and Terms of Reference 2017/2018 
 

7 - 12  

4.   Work Programme and Policy Direction 
 

13 - 22  

 PART 2: CONFIDENTIAL  Page 

   

5.   Work Local Campaign 
 

23 - 30  

6.   Trade and Investment 
 

31 - 34  

a) Appendix A - Strengthening Sub National Trade 
and Investment Policy Final Report 

 

35 - 81  

  
 

  

 
 
 Date of Next Meeting: Tuesday, 28 November 2017, 1.00 pm, Westminster 

Suite, 8th Floor, Local Government House, Smith Square, London, SW1P 3HZ 
 



Document is Restricted

Page 1

Agenda Item 2





 

People and Places Board  

21 September 2017 

 

 
 

Membership and Terms of Reference for 2017/2018 

 
Purpose 
 
For discussion and decision. 
 
Summary 
 
For members to note the membership and agree the Terms of Reference of the Board for 
2017/18. 

 
 

 

  Recommendation 

 

That the People and Places Board note its membership and agree its Terms 

of Reference.  

 

  Action 

 

  Officers respond accordingly to members’ direction. 

 

 
 
 
Contact officer:     Eleanor Reader-Moore 

Position: Assistant Member Services Manager 

Phone no: 020 7664 3383 

E-mail: eleanor.reader-moore@local.gov.uk   

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 7

Agenda Item 3

mailto:eleanor.reader-moore@local.gov.uk


 

People and Places Board  

21 September 2017 

 

 

People & Places Board – Membership 2017/2018 

 

Councillor Authority 

  

Conservative (14)  

Cllr Mark Hawthorne MBE 

(Chairman) 

Gloucestershire County Council 

Cllr Gillian Brown (Vice 

Chairman) 

Arun District Council 

Cllr Ralph Bagge  South Bucks District Council 

Cllr Derek Bastiman Scarborough Borough Council 

Cllr Deborah Croney  North Dorset District Council 

Cllr Tom Fitzpatrick  North Norfolk District Council 

Cllr Keith Glazier  East Sussex County Council 

Cllr Charlotte Haitham Taylor  Wokingham Borough Council 

Cllr Ian Hudspeth  Oxfordshire County Council 

Cllr Daniel Humphreys Worthing Borough Council 

Cllr Peter Jackson  Northumberland Council 

Cllr Harvey Siggs  Mendip District Council 

Cllr Rob Waltham MBE  North Lincolnshire Council 

Cllr Steve Count  Cambridgeshire County Council 

  

Substitutes  

Cllr Adrian Hardman  Worcestershire County Council 

Cllr Kenneth Meeson  Solihull Metropolitan Borough Council 

  

Labour (4)  

Cllr Anne Western CBE (Deputy 

Chair)  

Derbyshire County Council 

Page 8

Agenda Item 3



 

People and Places Board  

21 September 2017 

 

 
Cllr Azhar Ali  Lancashire County Council 

Cllr Vince Maple Medway Council 

Cllr Leigh Redman Somerset County Council 

  

Substitutes  

Cllr Lesley Williams MBE  Gloucestershire County Council 

Cllr Alan Waters  Norwich City Council 

  

Liberal Democrat (2)  

Cllr Heather Kidd (Deputy Chair) Shropshire Council 

Cllr Sarah Osborne Lewes District Council 

  

Substitutes  

Cllr Stan Collins  South Lakeland District Council 

  

Independent (2)  

Cllr Bob Jennings (Deputy  

Chair)  

Epping Forest District Council 

Cllr Helen Grant North Yorkshire County Council 

  

Substitutes  

Cllr Robin Julian  Devon County Council 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 9

Agenda Item 3



 

People and Places Board  

21 September 2017 

 

 

People and Places Board - Terms of Reference 2017/2018 
 

1. The People and Places Board represents the interests of non-metropolitan authorities. 
Its remit includes place-based inclusive growth with a particular emphasis on the needs 
of more rural areas, devolution, the implications of Britain’s departure from the European 
Union for non-metropolitan areas, digital connectivity, skills and employment support, 
public service reform and wider issues relating to place-based leadership. 

 
2. The Board should seek to involve councillors in supporting the delivery of these priorities 

(through task groups, Special Interest Groups (SIGs), regional networks and other  
means of wider engagement); essentially operating as the centre of a network 
connecting to all urban councils and drawing on the expertise of key advisors from 
across the sector. 

 
3. The People and Places Board’s responsibilities include: 
 

3.1. Ensuring the priorities of councils are fed into the business planning process. 
 

3.2. Developing and overseeing a work programme to deliver the business plan against 
agreed priorities relevant to their brief, covering lobbying, campaigns, research, 
improvement support in the context of the strategic framework set by Improvement & 
Innovation Board, and events, linking with other boards where appropriate. 

 

3.3. Sharing good practice and ideas to stimulate innovation and improvement. 
 

3.4. Representing and lobbying on behalf of the LGA including making public statements 
on its area of responsibility. 

 

3.5. Building and maintaining relationships with key stakeholders. 
 

3.6. Involving representatives from councils in its work, through task groups, 
Commissions, SIGs, regional networks and mechanisms. 

 

3.7. Commissioning LGA officers and resources, where appropriate, to respond to 
specific issues referred to the Board by one or more member councils or groupings 
of councils. 

 

4. The People and Places Board may:  
 

4.1. Appoint members to relevant outside bodies in accordance with the Political 
Conventions. 
 

4.2. Appoint member champions from the Board to lead on key issues, with responsibility 
for liaising with portfolio holders on key issues that require rapid response/contact 
with councils. 

 
 
 

Page 10

Agenda Item 3



 

People and Places Board  

21 September 2017 

 

 
Work Programme 
 
5. The Board to set its own work programme which is agreed at the start of each meeting 

cycle in early Autumn. 
 
Quorum 
 

6. One third of the members, provided that representatives of at least 2 political groups 
represented on the body are present. 

 
Political Composition 
 
7. The composition by political party is recalculated each year and reflects the political 

proportionality of the wider group of councils from which their membership is drawn. The 
current composition is: 

 
Conservative group:   14 members 
Labour group:    4 members 
Independent group:   2 members 
Liberal Democrat group:  2 members 

 
8. Substitute members from each political group may also be appointed. 
 
Frequency per year 
 
9. Meetings to be held five times per annum.  
 
Reporting Accountabilities 
 
10. The LGA Executive provides oversight of the Board. The Board may report periodically 

to the LGA Executive as required, and will submit an annual report to the Executive’s 
July meeting.  

 

Page 11

Agenda Item 3





 

People and Places Board 

21 September 2017  

 

 

     

Work Programme and Policy Direction 

 
Purpose  
 
For discussion and direction. 
 
 
Summary 
 
This report sets out the national context for the Board’s work; updates members on current 
projects and invites comments on the future direction of devolution policy for non-
metropolitan England.  
 
 

 
Recommendation 
 
That the People and Places Board comment on and agree the proposed workstreams at 
paragraphs 13, 17 and 21. 
 
Action 
 
Officers to proceed as directed by members. 
 

 
 

Contact officer:  Rebecca Cox 

Position: Principal Policy Adviser 

Phone no: 020 7187 7384 / 07921 604 237 

Email: rebecca.cox@local.gov.uk   

  

Page 13

Agenda Item 4

mailto:rebecca.cox@local.gov.uk


 

People and Places Board 

21 September 2017  

 

 

     

Work Programme and Policy Direction 

 
Background 
 
1. During the 2016/17 Board cycle, members led the development of a comprehensive 

programme of activity encompassing devolution in England, skills and employment 
support, trade and investment, and digital connectivity. The Board accepted a 
commission from the Leadership Board to start a debate on the constitutional position of 
local government during and after Brexit. The Board also oversaw the first and second 
phases of the Leading Places programme, supporting the development of more effective 
local relationships between local government and universities.  
 

2. The Board’s work took place during a time of significant political change. The first 
meeting took place shortly after the EU referendum, and the final meeting was held in 
the wake of a lengthy purdah period due to local government and the first combined 
authority mayoral elections and a general election. The resultant changes in the national 
policy context have not only affected the direction of existing policy work, but also 
Government’s capacity to engage in significant policy development and legislative 
activity. While the full implications of these changes have yet to emerge, it seems clear 
that they are likely to have an impact on the Board’s lobbying priorities.  

 
3. Given the cumulative effect of these changes, it is proposed that members use this first 

Board meeting to take stock of the progress and position of non-metropolitan devolution 
and have a free and open debate on how the Board should focus its activity in the 
coming year, particularly within the context of Brexit and the upcoming Industrial 
Strategy. This paper suggests a work programme that addresses the following: 

 
3.1. A need, given the changing national policy context, to develop a refreshed case for 

devolution to non-metropolitan areas as part of local government’s wider role in 
shaping and supporting post-Brexit Britain. 

3.2. The steer from the Board at the end of the last cycle to concentrate on a 
department-by-department approach to devolution in the short term. 

3.3. A need to bring new partners on board in our campaigning work. 
 

4. Members will also be aware that issues relevant to non-metropolitan authorities cut 
across many areas of the LGA’s work, but not are within the direct scope of this Board’s 
activities. At the time of writing most Boards had yet to meet, but key topics include: 

 
4.1. Fairer Funding review – Resources Board. 
4.2. Housing policy, including implementing the Housing White Paper – Environment, 

Economy, , Housing and Transport (EEHT) Board. 
4.3. Overall Brexit policy – cross-party task and finish group with input from all Boards as 

required. 
4.4. Overall response to the Industrial Strategy, growth policy – EEHT with input from the 

People and Places and City Regions Boards. 
4.5. Grenfell Tower response – cross-party task and finish group with input from the 

EEHT and Safer Stronger Communities Boards and Fire Services Management 
Committee. 

4.6. Education – Children and Young People Board. 
4.7. Health, including Sustainability and Transformation Plans – Community Wellbeing 

Board. 

Page 14

Agenda Item 4



 

People and Places Board 

21 September 2017  

 

 

     

 
Members are encouraged to feed in non-metropolitan perspectives to these discussions 
through their political groups. 
 

The current devolution context 
 
5. It is now two years since the then Government invited devolution submissions from areas 

across the UK and a year and half since the Cities and Local Government Devolution Act 
2016 passed into law. In that time devolution deals have been signed with 12 areas, of 
which 9 have progressed to implementation. Mayors were elected in 6 combined 
authorities in May 2017, but thus far the government has been reluctant to support 
proposals for devolution in areas that have not agreed to this form of devolved 
governance. 
 

6. A number of areas continue to negotiate with Government with the intention of securing 
a devolution deal and setting up a combined authority, while others have looked to the 
upcoming Industrial Strategy white paper as an alternative framework for greater local 
empowerment. The LGA continues to provide improvement support to all areas 
interested in devolution, including those who have secured deals.  

 
7. The Board has been at the forefront of the debate on devolution. As the initial deals with 

city regions were signed, the Board commissioned the Sir John Peace-led Independent 
Commission on Economic Growth and the Future of Public Services in Non-Metropolitan 
England to make the case for non-metropolitan areas. 

 
8. We have consistently worked with councils to help them make progress and to articulate 

their offer, and made the case for a more flexible approach to governance. The Board 
has sought to influence Government policy at key points, such as the introduction of the 
Cities and Local Government Devolution Bill and announcements such as the Budget 
and Autumn Statement.  The Board has also campaigned on specific elements such as 
skills and employment support.  
 

9. The Conservative manifesto contained a commitment to consolidating the government’s 
approach to devolution, providing clarity across England on what devolution means for 
different administrations so all authorities operate in a common framework. It also 
proposed to remove the requirement for non-metropolitan areas to agree to a mayor as 
part of devolution negotiations. 
 

10. In recent weeks Ministers have become more vocal in their support for devolution, 
particularly within the Northern Powerhouse. A supplementary devolution deal with the 
West Midlands Combined Authority is also being publicly discussed, and a health 
devolution deal with Surrey has been announced. At the same time, some elements of 
devolution deals, namely health devolution to London and devolution of the Adult 
Education Budget to deal areas have stalled. 

 
  

Page 15

Agenda Item 4



 

People and Places Board 

21 September 2017  

 

 

     

Next steps on devolution 
 

11. Ministerial and civil servant capacity will be focused on Brexit in the coming months and 
years. While it is expected that members will want the LGA to continue to press for policy 
gains in the Board’s priority areas, there is also the opportunity to use this time to 
consider the challenges and opportunities facing the UK and England once the UK has 
left the EU and in the run-up to the next general election. Within this, there is the 
opportunity to re-position non-metropolitan councils as a key component of a successful 
post-Brexit Britain and in turn win powers as part of a new ‘English settlement’.  
 

12. Many big issues facing the economy, including improving productivity and inclusive 
growth and closing the skills gap need to be addressed and may become more acute in 
the years immediately following Brexit. New challenges and opportunities, such as 
forging a wide range of trade and investment relationships to ensure the UK’s global 
competitiveness, will develop. In the run-up to a future election, the Government will also 
be keen to demonstrate to voters that their lives have improved outside the EU. Local 
government has the skills and experience to be able to address these issues and provide 
local solutions to boost UK plc, if Government will free up the levers for us to do so. The 
ongoing Brexit negotiations could give a platform to lay the building blocks for delivering 
our devolution asks as part of the LGA’s broader lobbying around Brexit. A summary of 
this work is included at Annex A.  

 
13. Within this context, members might like to consider whether they would like to lead a 

new piece of work setting out the case for greater and appropriately funded powers and 
flexibilities for non-metropolitan areas in England outside the EU. This would be in line 
with the LGA’s support for a ‘differential devolution’ process that supports those further 
ahead to continue to break new ground, while working to extend the benefits of 
devolution to all. The work might cover issues such as economic growth, public service 
outcomes, fiscal freedoms, democratic engagement and governance, and could draw on 
work undertaken by CCN and DCN as well as LGA and independent analysis.  

 
14. The work could seek to influence Ministers, senior civil servants, business 

leaders/organisations, providers of public services and commentators.  
 

15. The LGA is already in dialogue with a number of stakeholders, including among others: 
 
15.1. Ministers and senior civil servants in DCLG, BEIS, DExEU, DIT, DWP, DfE, DfT, 

HMT and DCMS. 
15.2. National bodies: Confederation for British Industry, Federation of Small Businesses, 

LEP Network, National Council for Voluntary Organisations, British Chambers of 
Commerce, Citizens Advice Bureau, Ofcom, Universities UK, Higher Education 
Funding Council for England. 

15.3. Parliamentarians: Select Committees and others. We continue to support the All-
Party Parliamentary Group on Reform, Decentralisation and Devolution.  

 
16. Members are invited to comment on this proposal, its audience and potential scope.  
 
  

Page 16

Agenda Item 4



 

People and Places Board 

21 September 2017  

 

 

     

Progressing the Board’s policy priorities 
 

17. At the final Board meeting of the previous cycle, members were in favour of exploring a 
change of focus from the pursuit of an ‘off the shelf’ deal for local government to seeking 
progress in a number of specific policy areas. This enables us to pursue some policy 
gains with Whitehall departments in the short term that together help embed greater 
devolution, rather than negotiating at a strategic level with Government. As set out in the 
proposals above, there is also the opportunity to use the Brexit negotiations to take 
forward some of our key policy asks. The LGA continues to make the case for greater 
local influence over a wide range of services, most recently in the Growing Places 
campaign launched at LGA annual conference in July. Within the Board’s remit, the 
following projects to enable greater departmental devolution are well advanced: 

 
17.1. Skills and employment support: this Board has consistently made the case for the 

devolution of skills and employment support to councils and combined authorities. 
Our Work Local campaign was launched at annual conference and makes the case 
for local approaches to get more people of all ages into good quality work and 
training. Officers propose developing the campaign to expand on some of the key 
asks in Work Local in order to form alliances and influence upcoming Government 
decisions. This is discussed in more detail in item 5 on the Board’s agenda. 
 

17.2. Trade and inward investment: work to explore the role of local government was 
commissioned in the previous Board cycle. The research demonstrated the ability of 
local government to lead effectively in this domain, but set out clearly the over-
complicated, top-down policy landscape that is holding back local leaders from doing 
more. A sub-national approach was discussed as one possible solution. Possible 
next steps for this work are discussed in item 6 on the Board’s agenda. 

 
17.3. Digital connectivity: the Board has helped establish local government as a credible 

and respected voice in the field of digital connectivity. It is proposed that over next 
year the Board capitalises on this success and adopts a more strategic approach to 
this topic: strengthening key relationships with national government and the 
communications regulator Ofcom; aligning our consumer advocacy campaigns with 
partners that share similar ambitions; maintaining our technical expertise and 
interest in broadband, but prioritising new thinking and stakeholder engagement 
activities to build capacity in relation to the provision of mobile infrastructure, where 
the role of local government is currently less influential and the opportunities to have 
a significant impact are more pronounced. If members agree, officers will prepare a 
paper for the Board’s next meeting.  

 
17.4. Higher education: through its oversight of the Leading Places project and related 

activity the Board has had some exposure to the growing interest at a national and 
local level in greater collaboration between local government and higher education 
institutions. In particular, it is expected that the forthcoming industrial strategy white 
paper will make recommendations regarding the role of universities in supporting 
innovation, infrastructure investment and contributing to leadership for local growth. 
As such, in addition to continuing to provide strategic oversight of existing projects, 
the Board may also wish to consider a more comprehensive process of engagement 
with national stakeholders in this field, such as Universities UK and explore the 
potential for further joint work. This should also seek to position local government 

Page 17

Agenda Item 4

https://www.local.gov.uk/about/campaigns/growing-places-building-local-public-services-future
https://www.local.gov.uk/topics/employment-and-skills/work-local


 

People and Places Board 

21 September 2017  

 

 

     

well in its ability to influence the £17.4 billion that the HE sector is able to invest in 
local places. 

 
18. As with the devolution work programme we will seek to form strategic partnerships to 

support our lobbying work. More detail on this will be set out within the individual papers 
supporting each priority area. 
 

Implications for Wales  
 
19. Welsh local government has its own devolution journey.  Following the decision of the 

Welsh Government to end its policy of reducing the number of councils through local 
government restructuring, councils in Wales have been asked to develop proposals for 
shared services.  We are working with the WLGA to support its work with councils 
through sharing the learning from English councils and new combined authorities. We 
are also working closely with the WLGA on issues arising from Brexit where these apply.  

 
Financial implications 
 
20. It is expected that work programme activities should be able to be met from the current 

budget. 
 
Next steps 
 
21. Members are asked to: 

 
21.1 Consider and comment on the overall balance of work, specifically:  

 
21.1.1. To develop a refreshed case for devolution to non-metropolitan areas as part 

of local government’s wider role in shaping and supporting post-Brexit Britain 
as described in paragraphs 12 to 16. 

 
21.1.2. To continue to ‘chip away’ on a departmental basis and seek to win greater 

powers for local government against the board’s priorities and support longer 
term ambitions for wider devolution set out in paragraph 17. 

 
21.1.3. To continue to contribute to the wider work of the LGA’s policy boards 

including the Industrial Strategy and Brexit as described in paragraph 4 and 
Annex A.  

 

  

Page 18

Agenda Item 4



 

People and Places Board 

21 September 2017  

 

 

     

Annex A 

Brexit 
 
1. In December 2016, as part of the LGA’s co-ordinated response to Britain’s impending 

departure from the European Union, Leadership Board endorsed a programme of work 
across five areas: 
 
1.1. The future autonomy of local government; 
1.2. Securing investment that is currently sourced from the EU; 
1.3. Developing a new legal base for local government; 
1.4. Community cohesion; and 
1.5. Place-based impact. 

 
2. As noted above, this Board and the City Regions Board were commissioned to start work 

on the first of these areas: the future autonomy of local government. Subsequently, both 
Boards oversaw the drafting of a set of principles that might strengthen the future 
position of local government and the development of a framework for engagement that 
sought to align the repatriation of EU law with our wider ambitions for devolution and 
public service reform.  
 

3. The publication of the EU (Withdrawal) Bill has further strengthened the case for thinking 
along these lines and work has progressed over the summer to prepare the ground for 
further policy and public affairs activity in the autumn. Within this context, Jeremy Smith, 
the former chief executive of the European Local Government Association was 
commissioned to prepare a report that examined UK local government’s existing rights in 
the EU’s policy and legislative processes through membership of the European 
Committee of Regions. 

 
4. A working draft of this report has now been completed which identifies the potential for a 

loss of rights for local government if an analogous process of formal consultation is not 
adopted by national government. This line of argument will be used to inform our public 
affairs activity relating to the passage of the EU (Withdrawal) Bill.1 
 

5. The LGA continues to pursue a targeted programme of work around leaving the EU. This 
includes: 

 
5.1. Workforce Councils play the leading role in bringing communities together and will 

be important in tackling challenges such as the retention of skilled workers. For 
example, 7 per cent of existing adult social care staff come from the continuing EU 
and 13 per cent of the construction workforce were born outside the UK. Securing a 
sustainable adult social care workforce and excellent care skills must be a priority. 
 

5.2. Funding LGA research found that local areas need €10.5 billion (£8.4 billion) of EU 
funding replaced as part of a locally-led successor to EU regional aid after Brexit. 
Since the EU referendum, we have repeatedly called for a government commitment 

                                           
1
 For reference, the LGA’s public affairs briefing on the Second Reading of the EU (Withdrawal) Bill - 

www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/2017%2009%2007%20EU%20%28Withdrawal%29%2
0Bill%20-%20HC%20-%20Second%20Reading.pdf 
 

Page 19

Agenda Item 4

https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/2017%2009%2007%20EU%20%28Withdrawal%29%20Bill%20-%20HC%20-%20Second%20Reading.pdf
https://www.local.gov.uk/sites/default/files/documents/2017%2009%2007%20EU%20%28Withdrawal%29%20Bill%20-%20HC%20-%20Second%20Reading.pdf


 

People and Places Board 

21 September 2017  

 

 

     

to replace vital EU regeneration funding. In its manifesto, the Government pledged 
to create a UK Shared Prosperity Fund to replace the money local areas currently 
receive from the EU. Council leaders want to work with the Government to avoid 
defaulting to a silo approach and creating a like-for-like replacement of the current 
EU programme, which is often held up in bureaucracy and delay. Brexit provides an 
opportunity to give local areas greater say over how to target a new and simplified 
regional aid fund at local projects of benefit for local people and economies and best 
support infrastructure, environment, enterprise and social cohesion.  

 
5.3. Procurement Councils currently have to follow EU-wide advertising and award 

procedures when they buy goods and services. The process sometimes sits 
uneasily with supporting the local economy. The EU process can also take between 
3 and 18 months – twice as long as typical private sector procurement. Almost no 
public contracts end up being awarded to companies in other EU member states. 
Only 20 per cent of English councils receive expressions of interest from companies 
based in other EU countries. Across Europe, only 1.6 per cent of public contracts 
are awarded to companies in other member states. A lighter-touch system which 
simplifies this processes, and provides more flexibilities to promote local growth, is 
vital so that councils can procure to shorter timescales and lower high administration 
costs for businesses, especially small and medium-sized enterprises.  

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 20

Agenda Item 4



 

People and Places Board 

21 September 2017  

 

 

     

Annex B 

 
LGA People and Places Board Forward Plan 2017/2018                         
 
 

Thursday 21 September 

Item 

Membership and Terms of Reference 

Work Programme Paper 

Work Local Campaign 

Trade and Inward Investment 

 
 

Tuesday 28 November 

Item 

The Industrial Strategy – a BEIS representative to be invited.  

 

 
 

Thursday 22 March 

Item 

Higher education, skills and employment – a representative from the Office for 
Students to be invited.   

 

 
Tuesday 12 June 

Item 

Non-metropolitan devolution    

 

Tuesday 30 January  

Item 

Digital Connectivity – an Ofcom representative to be invited. 

Page 21

Agenda Item 4





Document is Restricted

Page 23

Agenda Item 5





Document is Restricted

Page 31

Agenda Item 6





Document is Restricted

Page 35

Agenda Item 6a





E3 LAYDEN HOUSE BY RAIL 

Thameslink - Farnngdon, Barbican 

(Restricted service), City Thameslink 

&
LAYDEN HOUSE BY UNDERGROUND 

Circle/ Metropolitan/ Hammersmith & City -

Farringdon, Barbican 

Central Line - Chancery lane 

LAYDEN HOUSE BY BUS 

63, 55, 38,259 

Layden House

76-86 Turnmill Street,
London
EC1 M 5LG

Tel: 020 7664 3000 Fax: 020 7664 3030

*The Local Government Association will be based at Layden House whilst refurbishment takes place at their offices in Smith Square.

Public Transport
Layden House is served well by public transport. The 
nearest mainline station is Farringdon (Circle, Hammersmith & City and Metropolitan Lines. It also has Overground lines)
Bus routes - Farringdon Station
63 - Kings Cross - Crystal Palace Parade (Stop A/B)
55 - Oxford Circus -High Road Leyton (Stop E/K)
243 - Redvers Road - Waterloo Bridge (Stop E/K)

Cycling Facilties
The nearest Santander Cycle Hire racks are on Theobold's Road. 
For more information please go to www.tfl.gov.uk

Car Parks
Smithfield Car Park - EC1A 9DY
NCP Car Park London Saffron Hill - EC1N 8XA

Page 82


	Agenda
	2 Minutes of the Last Meeting
	3 Membership and Terms of Reference 2017/2018
	4 Work Programme and Policy Direction
	5 Work Local Campaign
	6 Trade and Investment
	6a Appendix A - Strengthening Sub National Trade and Investment Policy Final Report
	 



